Uldaho Law **Digital Commons** @ **Uldaho Law**

Idaho Supreme Court Records & Briefs, All

Idaho Supreme Court Records & Briefs

10-28-2016

Eddington v. State Appellant's Brief Dckt. 44353

III. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

A. On or about August 12, 2013, Mr. Eddington was charged as follows in Ada County Case
No. CR-FE-2013-10953:

COUNT 1: 18-4503 Kidnapping-Second Degree

COUNT 2: 18-1401 Burglary

COUNT 3: 18-905 (a) Assault-Aggravated With a Deadly Weapon

COUNT 4: 19-2520 Enhancement—Use of Deadly Weapon in Commission of a Felony.

B. The Court initially appointed the Ada County Public Defender's Office to represent Mr. Eddington. R. 9.

- C. On or about August 20, 2013, Mr. Chad Gulstrom, a private attorney, substituted in as Mr. Eddington's counsel. <u>Id.</u>
- D. On or about September 19, 2013, Mr. Eddington entered not guilty pleas to all the charges. <u>Id.</u>
- E. On or about October 16, 2013, Mr. Michael Bartlett (hereinafter "Trial Counsel" or "Mr. Bartlett") substituted in as counsel for Mr. Eddington. <u>Id.</u>
- F. On or about October 21, 2013, a felony criminal complaint was filed against Ms. Diana Eddington (hereinafter "Diana"), Mr. Eddington's mother, alleging she had committed the crime of witness intimidation in violation of I.C. 18-2604(3). <u>Id.</u>
- J. Mr. Bartlett then began to represent Diana, as well as Mr. Eddington, and entered an appearance in Diana's case on November 12, 2013. R. 10.
- M. On or about December 9, 2013, the Ada County Deputy Prosecutor, Ms. Whitney Faulkner, emailed Mr. Bartlett with a proposed plea offer to resolve Mr. Eddington's case. <u>Id.</u>
- Q. On December 17, 2013, Mr. Bartlett accepted the plea on Mr. Eddington's behalf. Id.
- R. Shortly thereafter, on or about December 20, 2013, Mr. Dinger, an Ada County Deputy Prosecutor, agreed to dismiss all charges against Diana. R. 15.

- S. Notably, however, Mr. Dinger refused to dismiss Diana's case until such time as Mr. Eddington plead guilty in this underlying criminal matter. Id.
- U. On December 20, 2013 Mr. Dinger sent an email referencing the scheduling of the continued preliminary hearing regarding Diana's case. In this email, Mr. Dinger states "We had contemplated the 17th—the day after her son pleads guilty in district court." Id.; R.136.
- V. On January 16, 2014, a Change of Plea Hearing was held in Mr. Eddington's case. R. 10.
- W. At Diana's January 17th, 2013 continued preliminary hearing (the day after Mr. Eddington's change of plea hearing), Ms. Faulkner had taken over the prosecution of Diana's case, replacing Mr. Dinger. R. 15.
- X. At that time, Ms. Faulkner changed "the deal" to dismiss Diana's charges after Mr. Eddington plead guilty. R. 15-16.
- Y. Instead, contrary to the agreement Ms. Faulkner's colleague, Mr. Dinger, had made with Mr. Bartlett, Ms. Faulkner then insisted that Diana's dismissal would only go into effect after Mr. Eddington was actually sentenced. R. 16.
- AA. On March 13, 2014, Mr. Eddington was sentenced to the custody of the Idaho Department of Correction for ten (10) years fixed, followed by twelve (12) years indeterminate, for Kidnapping in the Second-Degree and five (5) years fixed for Aggravated Assault to run concurrently. R. 11.
- BB. The dismissal of Diana's felony charge finally occurred on March 18th, 2014, the day after the filing of Mr. Eddington's Judgment and Commitment pleading. R. 16.
- CC. On April 22, 2014, Mr. Greg Silvey filed a Notice of Appeal to the Idaho Supreme Court on behalf of Mr. Eddington.

- DD. On July 11, 2014, Mr. Silvey also filed an Idaho Criminal Rule 35 Motion on behalf of Mr. Eddington.
- EE. On August 20, 2014, the Court denied Mr. Eddington's Rule 35 Motion. See Exhibit B.
- FF. On or about October 6, 2014, Mr. Eddington's appeal to the Idaho Supreme Court was dismissed.
- GG. On September 30, 2015, Mr. Eddington filed his Verified Petition for Post-Conviction Relief.
- HH. On November 24, 2015, Mr. Eddington filed his Motion to Disqualify State's Handling Attorney (Ms. Faulkner) on the basis she would be a material witness in the case.
- II. On December 7, 2015, the State filed its Answer to Mr. Eddington's Verified Petition for Post-Conviction Relief.
- JJ. On December 10, 2015, the State filed its Objection in Opposition of Petitioner's Motion for Disqualification of the State's Handling Attorney.
- KK. On January 8, 2016, the State filed its Motion for Summary Dismissal of the Verified Petition for Post-Conviction Relief.
- LL. Petitioner filed its objection and Response to the State's Motion for Summary Dismissal on January 20, 2016.
- MM. On June 22, 2016, the Court filed its Memorandum Decision and Order Granting Summary Dismissal as well as the Final Judgment in this matter.
- NN. On July 25, 2016, Mr. Eddington filed his Notice of Appeal.

IV. ISSUES ON APPEAL

A. The District Court erred in granting summary dismissal of Mr. Eddington's claims of Ineffective Assistance of Counsel Cited in his Petition for Post-Conviction Relief.

- B. The District Court Should Have Granted Mr. Eddington the Relief He Was Seeking Pursuant to a Summary Disposition Under I.C. § 19-4906(c).
- C. The District Court abused its discretion in failing to grant an evidentiary hearing on the claims cited in Mr. Eddington's Petition for Post-Conviction Relief.

V. STANDARD OF REVIEW

Post-conviction proceedings are special proceedings and civil in nature. I.C.R. 57(b); Like the plaintiff in a civil action, the applicant must prove by a preponderance of evidence the allegations upon which the request for post-conviction relief is based. I.C. § 19-4907; Stuart v. State, 118 Idaho 865, 869, 801 P.2d 1216, 1220 (1990); Goodwin v. State, 138 Idaho 269, 271, 61 P.3d 626, 628 (Ct. App. 2002).

In addition, an application for post-conviction relief differs from a complaint in an ordinary civil action. <u>Dunlap v. State</u>, 141 Idaho 50, 56, 106 P.3d 376, 382 (2004). The application must contain much more than "a short and plain statement of the claim" that would suffice for a complaint under Idaho Rule of Civil Procedure 8(a)(1). <u>State v. Payne</u>, 146 Idaho 548, 560, 199 P.3d 123, 135 (2008); <u>Goodwin</u>, 138 Idaho at 271, 61 P.3d at 628. The application must be verified with respect to facts within the personal knowledge of the applicant, and affidavits, records, or other evidence supporting its allegations must be attached or the application must state why such supporting evidence is not included with the application. I.C. § 19-4903.

On appeal from an order of summary dismissal, the Supreme Court applies the same standard utilized by the trial courts and examine whether the petitioner's admissible evidence asserts facts which, if true, would entitle the petitioner to relief. Ridgley v. State, 148 Idaho 671, 675, 227 P.3d 925, 929 (2010). On review of dismissal of a post-conviction relief application without an evidentiary hearing, the Court determines whether a genuine issue of material fact

exists based on the pleadings, depositions, and admissions, together with any affidavits on file. Rhoades v. State, 148 Idaho 247, 220 P.3d 1066 (2009); Ricca v. State, 124 Idaho 894, 896, 865 P.2d 985, 987 (Ct. App. 1993).

Notably, summary dismissal of a petition for post-conviction relief pursuant to I.C. §19-4906 is the procedural equivalent of summary judgment under I.R.C.P. 56. <u>Id.</u>; See also <u>Small v. State</u>, 132 Idaho 327, 330, 971 P.2d 1151, 1154 (Ct.App.1998). A dismissal of a post-conviction relief application without an evidentiary hearing is <u>only</u> proper when there is no genuine issue of material fact based on the pleadings, depositions and admissions together with any affidavits on file. <u>Id.</u> at 331, 971 P.2d at 1155 (emphasis added).

In other words, to withstand a motion for summary dismissal, an applicant for post-conviction relief must present his supporting facts in the form of admissible and competent evidence. Nevarez v. State, 145 Idaho 878, 881, 187 P.3d 1253, 1256 (Ct. App. 2008). That is, an application must be supported by written statements from witnesses who are able to give testimony themselves as to facts within their knowledge, or must be based upon otherwise verifiable information. Id.; Drapeau v. State, 103 Idaho 612, 617, 651 P.2d 546, 551 (Ct. App. 1982). A mere scintilla of evidence or only slight doubt is not sufficient to create a genuine issue of material fact. Blickenstaff v. Clegg, 140 Idaho 572, 577, 97 P.3d 439, 444 (2004); Nevarez, 145 Idaho at 881, 187 P.3d at 1256.

However, if the petition, affidavits, and other evidence supporting the petition allege facts that, if true, would entitle the petitioner to relief, the post-conviction claim may <u>not</u> be summarily dismissed. <u>Charboneau v. State</u>, 140 Idaho 789, 792, 102 P.3d 1108, 1111 (2004); <u>Sheahan v. State</u>, 146 Idaho 101, 104, 190 P.3d 920, 923 (Ct.App. 2008). Consequently, if a

genuine issue of material fact is presented, an evidentiary hearing must be conducted to resolve the factual issues. <u>Goodwin</u>, 138 Idaho at 272, 61 P.3d at 629.

Just as in civil summary judgment motions pursuant to I.R.C.P. 56, all inferences must be liberally construed in favor of the nonmoving party. <u>Id.</u> Claims may only be summarily dismissed if the petitioner's allegations are clearly disproven by the record of the criminal proceedings, if the petitioner has not presented evidence making a prima facie case as to each essential element of the claims, or if the petitioner's allegations do not justify relief as a matter of law. <u>Kelly v. State</u>, 149 Idaho 517, 521, 236 P.3d 1277, 1281 (2010); <u>DeRushé v. State</u>, 146 Idaho 599, 603, 200 P.3d 1148, 1152 (2009). Notably, when a trial court considers a motion for summary dismissal, uncontroverted allegations of fact contained in a verified application for post-conviction relief are <u>deemed to be true</u>. <u>Cooper v. State</u>, 96 Idaho 542, 531 P.2d 1187 (1975); See also Roman v. State, 125 Idaho 644, 647, 873 P.2d 898, 901 (Ct. App. 1994).

Moreover, summary "dismissal" is not the only option provided pursuant to the UPCPA. The Court has the ability to grant a defendant summary disposition in his favor, as well. In particular, pursuant to I.C. §19-4906(c)(emphasis added):

The court may grant a motion by <u>either party</u> for summary disposition of the application when it appears from the pleadings, depositions, answers to interrogatories, and admissions and agreements of fact, together with any affidavits submitted, that there is no genuine issue of material fact and the moving party is entitled to judgment as a matter of law.

Accordingly, Mr. Eddington respectfully requests that the District Court's dismissal of his UPCPA Petition be overturned and he be granted the relief he requested in his Petition for Post-Conviction Relief. R. 55.

VI. ARGUMENT

A. The District Court erred in granting summary dismissal of Mr. Eddington's claims of Ineffective Assistance of Counsel Cited in his Petition for Post-Conviction Relief.

Mr. Eddington filed his Verified Motion for Post-Conviction Relief on September 30, 2015 (hereinafter "PCRM"). R. 6-219. The PCRM was sworn document consisting of fifty (50) pages of testimony along with attached exhibits in excess of one hundred and fifty (150) pages. R. 6 –219. Some of the exhibits were affidavits also containing sworn testimony. See R. 222-228; R. 153-158; R. 159; R. 160-161; R. 162.

In this matter, Mr. Bartlett's action and/or inaction constituted ineffective assistance under the Strickland Test. Hoffman v. State, 277 P.3d 1050, 1058 (Ct. App. 2012). In Strickland, the United States Supreme Court stated that the Sixth Amendment accorded criminal defendants a right to counsel rendering "reasonably effective assistance given the totality of the circumstances." Strickland v. Washington, 466 U.S. 668, 669 (1984).

The Strickland Test requires that a post-conviction relief case for ineffective assistance of counsel to satisfy two prongs: (1) Mr. Eddington must show that the attorney's performance was deficient, and (2) the deficient performance prejudiced the petitioner. Strickland v. Washington, 466 U.S. 668, 687–88 (1984). A claim of ineffective assistance of counsel may properly be brought under the Uniform Post-Conviction Procedure Act. Barcella v. State, 148 Idaho 469, 477, 224 P.3d 536, 544 (Ct. App. 2009).

To establish a deficiency, Mr. Eddington has the burden of showing that the attorney's representation fell below an objective standard of reasonableness. <u>Gonzales v. State</u>, 151 Idaho 168, 172, 254 P.3d 69, 73 (Ct. App. 2011). To establish prejudice, Mr. Eddington must show a reasonable probability that, but for the attorney's deficient performance, the outcome of the proceeding would have been different. Id.

The strategic decisions of trial counsel will be objectively evaluated if such decisions are based on inadequate preparation, ignorance of relevant law, or other shortcomings. <u>Id.</u> Importantly, "certain defense strategies or decisions may be 'so ill chosen' as to render counsel's overall representation constitutionally defective." <u>Willis v. Newsome</u>, 771 F.2d 1445, 1447 (11th Cir.1985) (per curiam), cert. denied, 475 U.S. 1050, 106 S.Ct. 1273, 89 L.Ed.2d 581 (1986) (citations omitted). See also <u>Martin v. Rose,744 F.2d 1245</u>, 1249 (6th Cir.1984); <u>Adams v. Balkcom</u>, 688 F.2d 734, 738 (11th Cir. 1982).

In the present case, summary dismissal of Mr. Eddinton's PCRM was improper because, if true, the sworn allegations and admissible evidence presented in Mr. Eddington's PCRM would undoubtedly entitle Mr. Eddington to the relief he has requested. In his PCRM, Mr. Eddington listed eight (8) different ways, collectively and/or individually, that caused him to be deprived of ineffective assistance of counsel. Mr. Eddington supported each of these allegations by detailed, admissible evidence and extensive sworn testimony submitted with the PCRM by Mr. Eddington and his witnesses. See R. 6- R. 219.

1. Mr. Eddington Was Deprived of Effective Assistance of Counsel Because Mr. Bartlett Entered into an Actual Conflict of Interest by Representing Diana Eddington ("Diana"), Mr. Eddington's Mother, in Related Criminal Actions Without Obtaining Written and/or Informed Consent.

In its Memorandum Decsision and Order Granting Summary Dismissal (hereinafter "Dismissal"), the Trial Court stated that there are no "questions of fact as to whether there was any conflict caused by Mr. Bartlett representing Petitioner and Petitioner's mother, or whether the dismissal of charges against Petitioner's mother was conditioned on Petitioner pleading guilty to the charges against him." R. 340-341. This factual finding is clearly erroneous in light of the sworn testimony and evidence present in Mr. Eddington's PCRM. R. 9-11; 14-19; 21-25. As noted in the Court's Dismissal, the State of Idaho provided no evidence in support of its

position. R. 331. Rather, the State merely presented biased and unsupported argument. See Record in its entirety.

Mr. Eddington presented clear evidence that Mr. Bartlett had an actual and concurrent conflict of interest in representing both Mr. Eddington and his mother, Diana Eddington in substantially related criminal cases. R. 222-228; R. 13-R. 22. Neither Mr. Eddington nor Diana Eddington waived their 6th Amendment right to have right to conflict-free counsel. <u>Id</u>.

Although an ethical violation does not, in and of itself, automatically result in a finding of "ineffective assistance of counsel," it is instructive to review the Idaho Rules of Professional Conduct to understand the definition of a "conflict of interest" in the context of legal representation. The Idaho Rules of Professional Conduct set forth the definition of a conflict of interest. Pursuant to IRCP 1.7 (emphasis added):

- (a) Except as provided in paragraph (b), a lawyer shall not represent a client if the representation involves a concurrent conflict of interest. A concurrent conflict of interest exists if:
- (1) the representation of one client will be directly adverse to another client; or (2) there is a significant risk that the representation of one or more clients will be materially limited by the lawyer's responsibilities to another client, a former client or a third person or by the personal interests of the lawyer, including family and domestic relationships.

Pursuant to Idaho law, if a defendant shows that his counsel actively represented conflicting interests, there is a high probability of prejudice arising from multiple concurrent representation. Sparks v. State, 92 P.3d 542, 548, 140 Idaho 292, 298 (Idaho App. 2004). In a nutshell, the Idaho Court of Appeals has held that the second prong of the Strickland test demonstrating prejudice is **presumed** in such conflict of interest cases. <u>Id.</u> To establish a violation of the Sixth Amendment of the United States Constitution, a defendant must

demonstrate that an actual conflict of interest adversely affected his lawyer's performance. See Cuyler v. Sullivan, 446 U.S. 335, 348 (1980).

To demonstrate an "actual conflict," a defendant must first show that his counsel actively represented conflicting interests and second, that the conflict adversely affected his counsel's performance. <u>Cuyler</u>, 446 U.S. at 350; <u>Chippewa v. State</u>, 156 Idaho 915, 921, 332 P.3d 827, 833 (2014). See <u>Mickens v. Taylor</u>, 535 U.S. 162, 171 (2002) (Actual conflict is defined by its effect on counsel, not by whether there is a "mere theoretical division of loyalties").

To establish an adverse effect, the petition must: (1) identify a plausible alternative defense strategy or tactic; (2) show that the alternative strategy or tactic was objectively reasonable; and (3) show that defense counsel's failure to pursue that strategy or tactic was linked to the actual conflict. Chippewa, 156 Idaho at 919-22, 332 P.3d at 831-34. Although not binding authority, it is certainly instructive that in the 7th Circuit, "a defendant can establish ineffective assistance of counsel by showing that his attorney pressured him to plead guilty because of the attorney's conflict of interest." Daniels v. United States, 54 F.3d 290, 295 (7th Cir.1995).

Notably, the United States Supreme Court has stated:

[I]n a case of joint representation of conflicting interests the evil-it bears repeating-is in what the advocate finds himself compelled to refrain from doing, not only at trial but also as to possible pretrial plea negotiations and in the sentencing process. It may be possible in some cases to indentify from the record the prejudice resulting from an attorney's failure to undertake certain trial tasks, but even with a record of the sentencing hearing available it would be difficult to judge intelligently the impact of a conflict on the attorney's representation of a client. And to assess the impact of a conflict of interests on the attorney's options, tactics, and decisions in plea negotiations would be virtually impossible." Holloway v. Arkansas, supra, 435 U.S., at 490 -491.

For the same reasons as cited above, it would typically be futile to attempt to determine precisely how counsel's conduct would have been different had he not been under conflicting

duties. For that reason, a petitioner need only demonstrate that a conflict of interest <u>actually</u> <u>affected</u> the adequacy of his lawyer's performance. <u>Sparks v. State</u>, 140 Idaho at 296.

Mr. Bartlett began to represent Mr. Eddington on or about October 16, 2013. R. 9. Notably, Mr. Eddington's parents, Ronald and Diana Eddington were paying for Mr. Bartlett's attorney's fees for Mr. Eddington and signed the retainer agreement as "guarantors." <u>Id.</u>

On or about October 21, 2013, just five (5) days later, a felony criminal complaint was filed against Ms. Diana Eddington (hereinafter "Diana"), Mr. Eddington's mother, alleging she had committed the crime of witness intimidation in violation of I.C. 18-2604(3). <u>Id.</u> Diana's felony charge was the result of Diana sending an email on or about September 18, 2013 to Diana's ex-daughter-in-law, Ms. Carrie Eddington (hereinafter "Carrie"), the "victim" in Mr. Eddington's pending case. <u>Id.</u> Diana's email to Carrie discussed Diana's concern for Mr. Eddington's current well-being, his mental health, and the future of their family as it related to the pending criminal charges against Mr. Eddington. <u>Id.</u>

Diana was booked into the Ada County Jail as a result of this charge on November 1, 2013. R. 10. Mr. Bartlett then offered to represent Diana and informed her that the charges against her were unfounded. R. 10; R. 222-228. Mr. Bartlett stated he would do "whatever he could" to get the charges against Diana dismissed. Id. Mr. Bartlett then began to represent Diana at that time, as well as Mr. Eddington, and entered an appearance in Diana's case on November 12, 2013. R.10. Mr. Bartlett failed to obtain informed consent (either verbally or in writing) from either Mr. Eddington and/or his mother, despite the clear conflict of interest as a result of Mr. Bartlett representing both parties in concurrent, related criminal cases. R. 14-15; R. 224; R. 139.

In fact, Mr. Bartlett failed to even discuss the conflict of interest at all with either Mr. Eddington or Diana. R. 9; R. 222-228. Mr. Bartlett did, however, obtain written consent from

Mr. Eddington's parents to access the retainer they had paid for Mr. Eddington's defense in order to pay for Diana's representation as well. <u>Id.</u>; R. 14-15; R. 224; R. 139.

On or about December 20, 2013, less than two (2) months after she was charged, the State of Idaho offered to entirely dismiss Diana's felony charge. However, the dismissal was not offered free and indepenent from Mr. Eddington's case. Rather, the evidence demonstrates that the State would only dismiss her charge if, and only if, Mr. Eddington would plead guilty and be sentenced in his related case. R. 14-19; R. 222-228; R. 136. This "package deal" is very clear evidence that Mr. Bartlett was actively representing actual conflicting interests without a waiver.

It is extremely notable that neither Mr. Bartlett nor the State of Idaho presented <u>any</u> <u>evidence</u> whatsoever denying or refuting the allegations in Mr. Eddington's Petition. If Mr. Eddington's and his witnesses' sworn statements were not true, why did the State fail to provide affidavits or any other admissible evidence to the contrary? Nevertheless, the State provided <u>no</u> <u>evidence</u> denying Mr. Eddington's claims—there was no affidavit provided by Mr. Bartlett, no affidavit provided by either prosecutors on the related criminal cases or anyone else.

Mr. Bartlett prioritized Diana's case over Mr. Eddington's case as demonstrated from the sworn evidence and testimony set forth in Mr. Eddington's PCRM. R. 15-19; R. 224-228. Mr. Bartlett advised Diana that she could not testify on Mr. Eddington's behalf while the charge against her was pending because it could affect her case. <u>Id.</u> Mr. Bartlett further refused to submit Diana's letter of support for Mr. Eddington to the Court because he stated it could affect Diana's pending charge. R. 16; R. 137; R. 225-226.

The State of Idaho refused to dismiss Diana's charge until AFTER Mr. Eddington was sentenced. R. 16-19. The conflict of interest in this matter put Mr. Bartlett in the difficult position of choosing one client over another—and he chose Diana, rather than Mr. Eddington.

<u>Id.</u>; R. 225-226. The dismissal of Diana's charge finally occurred on March 18th, 2014, the day after the filing of Mr. Eddington's Judgment and Commitment pleading. <u>Id.</u>

Both the State of Idaho and Mr. Bartlett was using the felony charge against Diana as leverage during the plea negotiations and sentencing in Mr. Eddington's underlying criminal matter. Mr. Bartlett knew the plea offer for Mr. Eddington was very bad indeed and even admitted to the prosecutor that he was "a pushover" for accepting such a plea on behalf of his client. R. 312.

Further, Mr. Bartlett informed Mr. Eddington during one of his visits that "your mom's charges will be dropped as soon as you plead out." R. 17. He also implied that the fate of Diana's case was up to him. <u>Id.</u> Neither the State nor Mr. Bartlett provided any evidence denying this fact.

This "package" plea deal should have immediately alerted Mr. Bartlett to his ethical duties and an obvious conflict of interest. However, Mr. Bartlett did nothing to inform either of his clients that there was a conflict of interest in representing both of them or, more importantly, that Mr. Eddington's defense would have to suffer because Mr. Bartlett would not let Diana make any statements to the Court, written or otherwise, to support her son. R. 16-18; R. 222-228; R. 137; Mr. Bartlett demonstrated his divided loyalties between Diana and Mr. Eddington by permitting the prosecution to use the threat of pursuing a felony charge against Diana to impose improper pressure on Mr. Eddington to plead guilty. <u>Id</u>.

Being pressured by Mr. Bartlett, Mr. Eddington felt obligated, out of concern for his elderly, diabetic mother, to accept whatever plea deal the prosecution offered in order to protect Diana. Mr. Bartlett's divided loyalties and conflict of interest interfered with his putting forth a defense for Mr. Eddington at his sentencing in an effort to avoid jeopardizing the dismissal of

Diana's case, R. 25-27.

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