Uldaho Law Digital Commons @ Uldaho Law

Idaho Supreme Court Records & Briefs, All

Idaho Supreme Court Records & Briefs

1-18-2017

Eddington v. State Respondent's Brief Dckt. 44353

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

ARGUMENT

Eddington Has Failed To Show Error In The Summary Dismissal Of His Post-Conviction Petition

A. Introduction

On appeal, Eddington challenges the district court's order granting the state's motion for summary dismissal of his post-conviction claims. (<u>See generally</u> Appellant's Brief.) Eddington has failed to establish the district court erred in summarily dismissing his petition.

B. <u>Standard Of Review</u>

"On review of a dismissal of a post-conviction relief application without an evidentiary hearing, this Court will determine whether a genuine issue of material fact exists based on the pleadings, depositions and admissions together with any affidavits on file." <u>Workman v. State</u>, 144 Idaho 518, 523, 164 P.3d 798, 803 (2007) (citing <u>Gilpin-Grubb v. State</u>, 138 Idaho 76, 80, 57 P.3d 787, 791 (2002)).

C. <u>Eddington Has Failed To Establish Any Error In The District Court's Summary</u> <u>Dismissal Of His Post-Conviction Petition</u>

Idaho Code § 19-4906 authorizes summary dismissal of an application for postconviction relief in response to a party's motion or on the court's own initiative. "To withstand summary dismissal, a post-conviction applicant must present evidence establishing a prima facie case as to each element of the claims upon which the applicant bears the burden of proof." <u>State v. Lovelace</u>, 140 Idaho 53, 72, 90 P.3d 278, 297 (2003) (citing <u>Pratt v. State</u>, 134 Idaho 581, 583, 6 P.3d 831, 833 (2000)). Thus, a claim for post-conviction relief is subject to summary dismissal pursuant to I.C. § 19-4906 "if the applicant's evidence raises no genuine issue of material fact" as to each element of petitioner's claims. <u>Workman</u>, 144 Idaho at 522, 164 P.3d at 802 (citing I.C. § 19-4906(b), (c)); <u>Lovelace</u>, 140 Idaho at 72, 90 P.3d at 297.

While a court must accept a petitioner's unrebutted allegations as true, the court is not required to accept either the applicant's mere conclusory allegations, unsupported by admissible evidence, or the applicant's conclusions of law. <u>Workman</u>, 144 Idaho at 522, 164 P.3d at 802 (citing <u>Ferrier v. State</u>, 135 Idaho 797, 799, 25 P.3d 110, 112 (2001)). If the alleged facts, even if true, would not entitle the petitioner to relief, the trial court is not required to conduct an evidentiary hearing prior to dismissing the petition. <u>Id.</u> (citing <u>Stuart v. State</u>, 118 Idaho 865, 869, 801 P.2d 1216, 1220 (1990)). "Allegations contained in the application are insufficient for the granting of relief when (1) they are clearly disproved by the record of the original proceedings, or (2) do not justify relief as a matter of law." <u>Id.</u>

In its Memorandum Decision and Order Granting Summary Dismissal (R., pp.330-346), the district court articulates the applicable legal standards and sets forth, in detail, the reasons Eddington failed to establish a genuine issue of material fact on any of his claims. The state fully adopts the analysis and reasoning in the district court's Memorandum Decision and Order Granting Summary Dismissal as its basis for affirming the summary dismissal of Eddington's post-conviction claims, and incorporates that Decision and Order (attached as Appendix A) into this brief as if fully set forth herein. In addition to the district court's reasoning for granting the state's motion for summary dismissal, the state makes the following arguments and comments in regard to the summary dismissal of several of Eddington's claims.

6

1. <u>Trial Counsel's Failure To Present Favorable Testimony And Mitigating</u> <u>Mental Health Evidence At The Sentencing Hearing</u>

In summarily dismissing Eddington's claim that his trial counsel was ineffective "by refusing to permit favorable witnesses to testify on [his] behalf at the sentencing hearing or present sufficient mitigating evidence of [his] longstanding mental health challenges"² (R., p.28), the district court explained:

In sum, Petitioner received this sentence because of the seriousness of the crime. There is not a reasonable probability, even assuming that trial counsel had done what Petitioner now says he should have done, that the sentence he received would have been any more lenient. Further, each of these actions is within the range of tactical decisions allowable by defense counsel in a criminal case. Petitioner has failed to establish that these actions are impermissible as a matter of law. Thus, Petitioner has failed to establish any issue of fact as to whether the sentence would have been different had counsel acted as Petitioner believes counsel should have, or that counsel acted outside of the range of permitted conduct.

(R., p.345 (footnote omitted).)

To further buttress the district court's summary dismissal of Eddington's claim, it should be noted that five of the seven persons he contends his trial counsel should have called as witnesses at the sentencing hearing – Roxie Davidson, Ronald Eddington, Kathleen Eddington, Brian Davis, and Coleen Cline – provided letters supporting Eddington prior to that hearing. (See attachments to PSI.) Therefore, in making its sentencing decision, the trial court was not deprived of the favorable views those witnesses had of Eddington.

² As explained by the district court, Eddington also alleged that, during the sentencing hearing, his trial counsel was ineffective by (1) failing to adequately cross-examine the state's witnesses, (2) failing to object to irrelevant or inaccurate testimony, and (3) making a negative closing sentencing argument. (R., p.344.) The district court's Memorandum Decision and Order Granting Summary Dismissal (see R., pp.344-345 (Appendix A)), adequately addresses these issues without the need for further comment.

Although the two other non-witnesses did not provide letters to the sentencing court, their testimony would not have impacted the court's sentencing decision at all. Assuming that Tore Beal-Gwartney, Eddington's family law attorney, would have provided unfavorable information about Carrie Eddington (the victim) in regard to a contempt charge "filed against [her] and described [her] documented parental alienation attempts" (Appellant's Brief, p.32), such information would not have mitigated the extremely serious criminal behavior Eddington exhibited when he broke into Carrie's home during the night and woke her up at gunpoint saying he was going to kill her, then himself.

Of similar insignificance is Eddington's complaint that his trial counsel did not call Dr. Jeanine Stone, his treating physician, to testify about his depression and anxiety, and that counsel failed to present mitigating evidence of Eddington's mental health challenges. (Appellant's Brief, p.33.) Dr. Stone's testimony would have added little to the information presented in Mountain States Counseling & Psychological Services' 32-page "Domestic Assault/Battery Risk Assessment & Psychological Evaluation" (hereinafter "Evaluation") prepared by Dr. Michael Johnston at the request of both parties.³ (See 3/5/14 Evaluation, attached to PSI; see also R., p.111 (Tr., p.47, Ls.2-6).) According to the Evaluation, Eddington identified his problems as including depression and anxiety (id., p.3), and those (and other) mental health issues were addressed (id., pp.8-9), culminating with a DSM-5 diagnosis that Eddington suffered from "major depression, moderate (history of severe), with anxious distress," and "persistent

³ The district court explained at the outset of the sentencing hearing that it had reviewed the evaluations appended to the presentence report, including the psychological evaluation performed by Dr. Johnston. (R., p.100 (Tr., p.1, L.13 – p.2, L.15).)

depressive disorder (dysthymia), moderate, with anxious distress" (id., p.13 (capitalization modified)).

Eddington has failed to show any error in the summary dismissal of this claim under the deficient performance and prejudice prongs of <u>Strickland v. Washington</u>, 466 U.S. 668, 687-688 (1984).

2. Trial Counsel's Failure To Become Familiar With The Facts Of The Case

Eddington contends the district court erred in summarily dismissing his claim that his trial counsel was ineffective by being unprepared in the following three ways: (1) refusing to listen to audio recordings of the initial police interviews of Carrie Eddington in which she made several sympathetic statements about Eddington, (2) failing "to obtain and review the 2011 custody deposition that clearly described Mr. and Ms. Eddington's failed reconciliation attempt and Mr. Eddington's legitimate access to Ms. Eddington's house during that time[,]" and (3) failing to research Eddington's "mental health issues and using this information to mitigate [Eddington's] actions." (Appellant's Brief, pp.35-37.)

In summarily dismissing Eddington's three-part claim, the district court explained, "In this contention, Petitioner reiterates previously cited 'sentencing errors' he attributes to trial counsel, as well as what he claims was counsel's insufficient investigation of the police audios of interviews with the victim." (R., p.345.) The court did not need to repeat its determination that Eddington failed to show prejudice because he failed to demonstrate that, absent the claimed errors, the result of his sentencing hearing would have been different in regard to his reiterated "sentencing errors" claims. (See R, pp.345-346; § C-1, supra.)

9

Eddington argues that the alleged failure of his trial counsel to review the audio recordings of Carrie Eddington's initial police interviews constituted ineffective assistance because she made several statements sympathetic to Eddington, such as his need for help, that she felt bad because Eddington's wife was pregnant, and that he is generally a good person. (Appellant's Brief, p.36.) However, Carrie's statements were made in the aftermath of Eddington's frightening and malevolent crimes, while she "was extremely upset and unable to stand still[,]" pacing back and forth on the floor and too upset to even give a written statement. (PSI, attached Meridian P.D. Narrative Report of Cpl. Mark Ford, DR#2013-4641, p.2.) That Carrie made sympathetic comments about Eddington at that vulnerable time does not lessen Eddington's culpability for his actions in any way, especially in contrast to Carrie's more considered comments at the sentencing hearing. (See R., pp.101-103 (Tr., p.6, L.1 – p.14, L.21).)

Based on the district court's ruling (<u>see</u> R., p.345-346) and the above comments, Eddington has failed to show any error in the summary dismissal of his claim that his trial counsel was ineffective for failing "to fully familiarize himself with the discovery/ facts of the case" (R., p.43).

3. <u>The District Court Correctly Denied Eddington's Motion For Summary</u> <u>Disposition And His Request For An Evidentiary Hearing</u>

Eddington may be arguing that because the state did not present any evidence to controvert his claims, he is entitled to summary disposition in his favor. (<u>See</u> Appellant's Brief, p.48.) There is simply no such rule. To the contrary, as explained by the district court:

Like a plaintiff in a civil action, a petitioner seeking post-conviction relief must bear the burden of proving the allegations upon which Petitioner for post-conviction relief is based by a preponderance of the evidence. I.C.R. 57(c); *Grube v. State*, 134 Idaho 24, 27, 995 P.2d 794, 797 (2000). . . .

Summary dismissal of a petition for post-conviction relief is appropriate if "the petitioner has not presented evidence establishing a prima facie case as to each element of the claims upon which the applicant bears the burden of proof." [*Pratt v. State*, 134 Idaho 581, 583, 6 P.3d 831, 833 (2000).] . . . "Summary dismissal of an application for post-conviction relief may be appropriate, however, even where the state does not controvert the applicant's evidence because the court is not required to accept either the applicant's mere conclusory allegations, unsupported by admissible evidence, or the applicant's conclusions of law." *Frank-Teel v. State*, 143 Idaho 664, 668, 152 P.3d 25, 29 (Ct. App. 2006).

(R., p.333.) Regardless of whether the state presented any evidence, Eddington had the burden of presenting a *prima facie* case supporting each allegation of his post-conviction claims.

Moreover, because the district court properly granted the state's motion for summary dismissal, Eddington can claim no error in the court's decision to not grant his motion for summary disposition or its refusal to grant him an evidentiary hearing.

CONCLUSION

The state respectfully requests this Court affirm the district court's order summarily dismissing Eddington's petition for post-conviction relief.